
MAY 12, 2016 – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Somers held on 
Thursday evening May 12, 2016 at 6:30 PM at the Town House, 335 Route 202, Somers, 
New York. 
 
ROLL CALL:   
   
PRESENT: Supervisor Rick Morrissey  
 Councilman Richard G. Clinchy 
 Councilman Anthony J. Cirieco 
 Councilman  William G. Faulkner  
   
ABSENT: Councilman Thomas A. Garrity, Jr. 
 
Also present were Patricia Kalba, Town Clerk, Geraldine Gilmore, Deputy Town Clerk 
and Roland A. Baroni, Jr., Town Attorney. 
 
The Supervisor said that it was in order for the Board to enter into an executive session 
with regard to contracts and personnel. 
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Clinchy, the 
meeting was adjourned to an executive session at 6:30 PM with regard to contracts and 
personnel to return that evening. 
 

7:00 PM – meeting reconvened 
 
The Supervisor said that he wanted to begin the meeting with a moment of silence in 
memory of the passing of Judge Harold Wood.  He said that Judge Wood was a long time 
resident of the Town of Somers and he was an exceptional person with an abundance of 
amazing accomplishments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
There being no one to be heard on motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by 
Councilman Cirieco, public comment session was declared closed. 
 
The Supervisor said that Mr. Michael Fiorello of City Carting was present that evening to 
give the Board an update. 
 
Mr. Fiorello said that he was from City Carting and Somers Sanitation the Transfer 
Station located on Route 100.  He stated that Somers Sanitation was rated the cleanest 
Transfer Station in Region 3 by the New York State Department of Environmental 
Conservation (NYS DEC).  He said that Region 3 was from the New York City line to 
Albany.  Mr. Fiorello said that in the Town of Somers garbage tonnage was down by 500 
tons in one year and the recycling rate was in the mid 40 percentile. 
 
The Supervisor said that along with Councilman Clinchy, he had the opportunity to tour 
their Single Stream Recycling Facility in Stamford, Connecticut.  He asked Mr. Fiorello 
to define single stream recycling.  Mr. Fiorello explained that all recycling went into one 
bin and City Carting had invested in machinery that separated all the recycling.  
Discussion ensued with regard to the recycling process.  Mr. Fiorello said that they had a 
video of the whole process that he would send to the Supervisor for the Town website. 
 
Councilman Cirieco asked Mr. Fiorello to speak to some of the attributes of having the 
cleanest Transfer Station.  Mr. Fiorello explained that all Transfer Stations had a DEC 
Monitor who visited the facility.  He continued that his Monitor visited at least once a 
week and gave him a full inspection report.  He said that in the 5 years City Carting had 
been in Somers he had received two violations, where most Transfer Stations received a 



MAY 12, 2016 – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

violation weekly.  Councilman Cirieco said that Mr. Fiorello had great management 
practices. 
 
Councilman Clinchy said that Mr. Fiorello had put great emphasis on improving that area 
since he had taken over the facility.  Mr. Fiorello stated that he adopted Route 100 from 
the Elephant Hotel to Route 35 and he tried to keep it as clean as possible.  Councilman 
Clinchy said that they also ran the E-waste Days at the Somers Middle School.  Mr. 
Fiorello explained that the President of the PTA asked him for help and it had grown into 
something that he was going to do twice a year.  He continued that the Spring event was 
in connection with the Somers PTA and the Fall event was in connection with the Somers 
Litter Task Force.  Councilman Clinchy said that he also had the Westchester County 
Shred Mobile at his facility.  Mr. Fiorello said that he did that a couple of times a year as 
well.  Discussion ensued with regard to how the E-waste was recycled. 
 
Councilman Clinchy said that they had discussed in the past suppling larger recycling 
bins to their customers.  Mr. Fiorello said that they had been receiving phone calls with 
regard to that and it was currently being looked into and they should have an answer 
soon. 
 
The Supervisor said that he wanted to present Mr. Fiorello with a Proclamation from the 
Town Board.  He read the Proclamation thanking Mr. Fiorello for his many contributions 
to the Town of Somers.  He declared Monday, May 16, 2016, Mike Fiorello Day in the 
Town of Somers. 
 
The Town Clerk presented monthly reports from the Town Clerk, Building Inspector, 
Zoning Board of Appeals, Plumbing, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Parks and Recreation, 
Planning and Engineering, Tax Receiver and Director of Finance. 
 
The first item on the agenda was with regard to the hiring of Mr. Jayme Andersen, part-
time Maintenance Laborer at Parks and Recreation. 
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Cirieco, it was 
unanimously, 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the hiring of Mr. Jayme 
Andersen, Maintenance Laborer, Part-time, not to exceed 17 hours per week, at an hourly 
salary of $12.00 per hour effective May 16, 2016, per memo dated May 5, 2016 from 
Steven Ralston, Superintendent of Parks and Recreation. 
 
The Supervisor said that the next item on the agenda was to award the bid for Somers 
Camp Trip Transportation to Royal Coach Line, Inc. 
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Clinchy, it was 
unanimously, 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby award the bid for Summer Camp Trip 
Transportation to Royal Coach Lines, Inc. in the amount of $18,125.00, per memo dated 
May 4, 2016 from Steven Ralston, Superintendent of Parks and Recreation. 
 
The next item was a presentation of the Somers Water Quality Improvement Program 
(WQIP) and Business Historic District Sewer Project by Joseph Barbagallo, Consulting 
Engineer.  The Supervisor explained that the Town of Somers was one of five 
municipalities in 1998 identified to have funds set aside by the New York City 
Department of Environmental Protection (NYC DEP) to protect their water sources.  He 
said that all the reservoirs in the Town of Somers were part of the New York City Water 
Supply.  He continued that the NYC DEP designated areas in the Watershed where they 
wanted to see Water Quality Improvement Projects.  The Supervisor said that 
Westchester County had been holding the funds which were called Water Quality 

Monthly 
reports 

Hire J. 
Andersen as 
part-time 
Maintenance 
Laborer for 
Parks and Rec 

Award the bid 
for Somers 
Camp Trip 
Transportation 

Presentation of 
the Somers 
Water Quality 
Improvement 
Program 
(WQIP) and 
Business 
Historic District 
Sewer Project 
by J. 
Barbagallo, 
Consulting 
Engineer 



MAY 12, 2016 – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

Improvement Program (WQIP) Funds.  He continued that recently there had been 
movement by other municipalities to use the funds.  He said as an effort for Somers to do 
the same, they had come up with some projects to use the money. 
 
Mr. Barbagallo said that about a year ago discussions began about WQIP Funds and the 
availability of $10,000,000.00.  He said that the process started with an evaluation and a 
study of the Shenorock area to determine the alternatives that existed to utilize the 
funding.  He continued that they came up with four alternatives; sewering the entire area, 
refining the sewering to address the high impact area, what could be done without any 
additional money and a Septic Maintenance Program.  Mr. Barbagallo said that the Septic 
Maintenance Program option was what the public and Town Board gravitated towards.  
He said that program incorporated using a portion of the funding available to the Town 
and also added to the element to include other Water Quality Improvement Projects 
within the Town.  He defined the Septic Maintenance Program and how it would be 
implemented.  Discussion ensued with regard to the Septic Maintenance Program and 
why the Town of Somers had received the funding.  Mr. Barbagallo said that the Septic 
Maintenance Program was the capital portion of the WQIP Funds and there would be 
interest gained from that funding and interest could be used for other Water Improvement 
Projects.  He gave examples of projects that could be funded or maintained with the 
interest. 
 
Mr. Barbagallo said that another project that they were looking into was a gravity sewer 
in the Business Historic Preservation District (BHP-D).  He said that the installation of a 
gravity sewer would be from the intersection of Route 202 and Route 116 to the Citi 
Bank Building and then down Route 202 to Heritage Hills Drive where it would connect 
to the Heritage Wastewater Treatment Plant.  He said that this was identified in the 
Town’s Master Plan and included 38 Town owned and Commercial parcels.  Mr. 
Barbagallo stated that it represented 4,250 feet of gravity sewer with the option for an 
additional 880 feet of low pressure force main.  He said that they were estimating that 
they would be in the 50,000 to 80,000 gallon a day range and that was well within the 
capacity of the Heritage Plant.  He continued that they did some cost estimates on the 
area, including connection fees, which were still under negotiation, and the interconnects 
to the sewer lines and they were at the 5 ½ to 6 million dollar range. 
 
Mr. Barbagallo said that the Supervisor asked them to put context to the cost of this 
project for the residents.  He said that the Capital costs would be taken from the funding 
that was discussed.  He said that the Operation and Management (O&M) cost would be 
the responsibility of the individuals or business owners.  Mr. Barbagallo said that based 
on the rates he was given from Heritage and it was going to depend on water usage, they 
were estimating the cost to be about $50.00 per connection, per month.  He said that he 
reached out to Adam Smith, Water Superintendent, as to what the O&M meant to him 
and he was not able to discuss this with him before the meeting.  He said that his office 
ran some figures and it should not cost more than $25.00.  He stated that the total 
monthly cost they were looking at was roughly $75.00 per connection. 
 
Councilman Cirieco asked if this type of project fit within the scope of the funding.  The 
Supervisor stated that he was the Chair of the Northern Westchester Watershed 
Committee and that was made up of the municipalities in the watershed.  He explained 
that not all those municipalities were identified as eligible for the $10,000,000.00.  He 
said that North Salem had used their funding to fund Peach Lake; Bedford Hills had used 
3.5 million dollars for a Septic Management Program; and New Castle had identified 
their 10,000,000.00 to upgrade from the Surface Water Treatment Plant.  The Supervisor 
said that Yorktown was discussing upgrades to their Hallocks Mill Sewer Treatment 
Plant and he did not want Somers to be left behind.  He said that Somers had used 
$100,000.00 for the study of Lake Shenorock and there was a $175,000.00 allocation for 
Stormwater Management to purchase a vacuum truck to clean the pervious surfaces.  He 
said that the Committee at that time had already well over allocated the remaining monies 
that were in the WQIP Fund.  The Supervisor said that they were realizing that they were 



MAY 12, 2016 – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

not going to be able to do every Towns’ projects.  He said that there was an effort 
underway to meet with the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation to 
discuss additional funding for each project.  Discussion ensued with regard to how 
funding was secured and reimbursed. 
 
Mr. Robert Doherty, property owner on Route 202, asked if when they were putting in 
the sewer lines, if sidewalks could be placed on top of the lines and lighting be placed in 
the District.  Mr. Barbagallo explained that the utility pipes should not be placed on top 
of the sewer lines.  Mr. Doherty said that he would like for the Town to also look into 
putting in water lines. 
 
Mr. Daniel Sudlik said that he knew that the Board was discussing businesses although 
there were several private homes along the route they were discussing.  He said that he 
assumed that those homes would be included in the sewer connection.  The Supervisor 
said that was correct. 
 
Ms. Abbate asked when the Town would know the project was approved and once they 
had the approvals what the process was going to be for the construction.  The Supervisor 
explained that they were being optimistic about receiving the funding and he was unsure 
about the timing once the funding was granted.  He said based on some of the other 
projects it took about 6 to 12 months.  He said that there would be public hearings and 
informational meetings with regard to the project before the project was started to get 
input from the property owners. 
 
The Town Attorney explained that he would recommend that the Town form a Sewer 
District and then have that Sewer District enter into an agreement with Heritage Hills 
Sewer Treatment.  He said that the O&M fees would then be collected through taxes and 
the capital charges would be paid from the WQIP Funds, therefore it would be a debt free 
District.  Mr. Barbagallo said that there might be debt if they decided to add the water 
component or anything other than sewering.  The Town Attorney said that the creation of 
the District was an easy process when there was no debt because they did not need the 
permission of the State Comptroller. 
 
The Supervisor said the next item was to authorize sending Request for Proposals (RFP) 
for a Solar Carport at the Somers Highway Garage and for Solar Panels at the Somers 
Library and/or the Parks and Recreation Building.  He explained that this was for the 
Town to apply for the $100,000.00 Grant that Senator Murphy’s Office designated for the 
Town of Somers Solar Projects.  He said that the application was very detailed with 
regard to the amounts, therefore they needed to secure proposals.  The Town Attorney 
said that this should be a bid not an RFP due to the amount of the projects. 
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Faulkner, it was 
unanimously, 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize going to bid for the installation 
of a Solar Carport at the Town of Somers Highway Garage, per memo dated May 11, 
2016 from Syrette Dym, Director of Planning. 
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Faulkner, it was 
unanimously, 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize going to bid for the installation 
of Solar Panels at the Town of Somers Library and/or the Town of Somers Parks and 
Recreation Building, per memo dated May 11, 2016 from Syrette Dym, Director of 
Planning. 
 

Authorize going 
to bid for the 
installation of a 
Solar Carport 
and Solar Panels 



MAY 12, 2016 – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

PERSONNEL: 
 
Current Vacancies: 
 
Somers Energy Environment Committee 
Affordable Housing Board (3 – unexpired 2 year terms) ending 7/11/2017 
 
Upcoming Vacancies: 
 
The Supervisor said that it was in order for the Board to authorize the hiring of Mr. 
Thomas Johanson as Somers Police Officer part-time. 
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Cirieco, it was 
unanimously, 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the hiring of Mr. Thomas 
Johanson as Somers Police Officer part-time, to work no more than 20 hours per week, at 
an hourly salary of $30.20 effective May 13, 2016. 
 
The Supervisor said that it was in order for the Board to authorize the hiring of Mr. 
Nicola Boncardo as Somers Police Officer part-time. 
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Cirieco, it was 
unanimously, 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the hiring of Mr. Nicola 
Boncardo as Somers Police Officer part-time, to work no more than 20 hours per week, at 
an hourly salary of $30.20 effective May 13, 2016. 
 
The next item on the agenda was a review and comment of the Somers Crossing Site 
Plan, Subdivision Preliminary Grading Plan and Preliminary Plat.  The Town Board had 
no comments to submit.   
 
The Supervisor said that the next item on the agenda was the consensus agenda.  
Councilman Clinchy said with regard to item number 14, last week the Board had 
questions with regard to that property.  The Supervisor said that he went out and looked 
at the property and it was as stated a wooded lot with trees that were falling down and it 
was the intention of the purchaser to clean up that lot.   
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Cirieco, it was 
unanimously, 
 

1a. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby approve a request to 
allocate $12,000.00 ($11,620.00 plus $380.00 contingency) from the 
Recreation Fee account for A Amp Electrical Corp. to complete work for 
the replacement of the basketball court lights, per memo dated April 28, 
2016 from Steven Ralston, Superintendent of Parks and Recreation. 

 
1b. RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorize the hiring of Mr. 

Tyler Silva as a Seasonal Maintenance Worker for Parks and Recreation at 
an hourly rate of $12.00 per hour, effective May 20, 2016, per memo 
dated April 28, 2016 from Steven Ralston, Superintendent of Parks and 
Recreation. 

 
2. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize a Resolution of 

Support be sent to the Planning Board with regard to the Bureau of Fire 
Prevention’s suggestion that any road servicing three or more houses be 
assigned a road name by the Town for easily identifiable vehicle access. 

Hire T. Johanson 
as Somers Police 
Officer part-time 

Hire N. 
Boncardo as 
Somers Police 
Officer part-time 

Somers 
Crossing 

Consensus 
agenda 

Approve request to replace 
the basketball court lights 

Hire T. Silva as 
Seasonal Maintenance 
Worker for Parks and 
Recreation 

Authorize a Resolution 
of Support 



MAY 12, 2016 – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

 
3. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize an additional 

$3,600.00 escrow for the SEQRA Review of the Somers Crossing 
Application per letter dated April 25, 2016 from Frederick Wells, Senior 
Vice President, Tim Miller Associates, Inc. 

 
4. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the Town 

Attorney to execute Consent Judgement in the matter of Coolidge Somers 
ag. Town of Somers – Index No. 22332/09 et al., per memo dated April 
25, 2016 from Roland A. Baroni, Jr., Town Attorney. 

 
5. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby acknowledge the 

resignation of Ms. Lauren McDonald Carway from the Somers Substance 
Abuse Council/Partners in Prevention. 

 
6. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby appoint Dr. Jerry O. Stern, 

M.D. to the Somers Energy Environment Committee.   
 

7. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby appoint Ms. Michele 
Werney to the Parks and Recreation Board to fill an unexpired term 
ending March 9, 2019. 

 
8. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby return no comments to the 

Planning Board with regard to their review of the Crossroad at Baldwin 
Plan Site Plan. 

 
9. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the amendment 

to the Emergency Evacuation Procedures for the Town House to include 
Carbon Monoxide Alarm per request from William Premuroso, Fire 
Inspector. 

 
10. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the return of the 

following Bonds per memo from Steven Woelfle, Principal Engineering 
Technician: 

 
a. $200.00  Dellorusso/DeVito Stormwater Management and 

Erosion and Sediment Control Permit 47.08-1-28 
b. $100.00 Newman Steep Slope Permit 28.09-1-15 
c. $300.00  Vataj Stormwater Management and Erosion and 

Sediment Control Permit 16.09-1-7 
 

11. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby accept the following Bond 
per memo dated April 15, 2016 from Wendy Getting, Senior Office 
Assistant: 

 
a. $500.00 Mastrantoni (Gibbons) Stormwater Management, 

Erosion and Sediment Control and Tree Permit 6.19-1-35 
 

12. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the sale of two 
(2) Town Owned properties, 6 Hemlock Drive, 5.15-3-37 and 3 Geranium 
Drive, 5.15-3-40, to Mr. Douglas Lee in the amount of $4,820.00. 

 
13. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the sale of a 

Paper Road known as Bud Court to Ms. Rena M. Riccardi in the amount 
of $2,500.00 contingent upon receipt of a survey of Bud Court. 

 

Additional $3,600.00 
escrow for the SEQRA 
Review of the Somers 
Crossing Application 

Consent Judgement 

Acknowledge resignation 
of L. McDonald Carway 
from the Somers 
Substance Abuse 
Council/Partners in 
Prevention 

Appoint J. Stern, M.D. to 
the Somers Energy 
Environment Committee 

Appoint M. Werney to 
the Parks and 
Recreation Board 

No comments to the 
Planning Board for the 
Crossroad 

Authorize the 
amendment to the 
Emergency Evacuation 
Procedures for the Town 
House 

Return of Bonds 

Acceptance of Bond 

Authorize sale of two 
Town Owned properties 

Authorize sale of 
Paper Road 



MAY 12, 2016 – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

14. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the sale of Town 
Owned property, 11 Geranium Drive, 5.15-3-44, to Mr. Joseph Curry in 
the amount of $2,400.00. 

 
15. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize waiving the 30 

day waiting period for the issuance of a new liquor license to 202 
Steakhouse, LLC, 2 Old Tomahawk Street Yorktown Heights, New York 
10598 (formally Somers 202 Restaurant and Grill). 

 
16. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize an additional 

$500.00 compensation pay to Ms. Patricia Nicolosi for extra work 
performed in the Assessor’s Office between January 15, 2016 to March 
11, 2016 due to shortage of staff, per memo dated March 25, 2016 from 
Teresa Stegner, Town Assessor. 

 
17. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby declare May as 

Preservation Month 2016, This Place Matters, in connection with National 
Trust for Historic Preservation. 

 
18. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the Supervisor 

to execute an agreement with The Leahy Company for a complete review 
of the Town’s Workers Compensation Experience Rating for July 2013 to 
July 2016. 

 
19a. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the Supervisor 

to execute the 2016 IIIB Federal Service Agreement for $3,483.00 in 
funding per memo dated May 5, 2016 from Barbara Taberer, Program 
Director. 

 
19b-c. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby authorize the Supervisor 

to execute the 2016 IIIC-1 and the 2016 IIIC-2 Agreements which 
includes NSIP funding with Westchester County Department of Senior 
Programs and Services, per memo dated May 5, 2016 from Barbara 
Taberer, Program Director as follows: 

 
 2016 IIIC-1 Federal Funding: $15,747.00 NSIP Funding: $6,600.00 
 2016 IIIC-2 Federal Funding: $13,449.00 NSIP Funding $6,635.00 
 

20. RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby adopt the Annual MS4 
Report as prepared by Syrette Dym, Director of Planning. 

 
Councilman Clinchy said that he thought that recycling should be increased on the Town 
level.  The Supervisor said that there were recycling bins in every location where there 
was a trash bin and all employees were very good about recycling. 
 
The Supervisor said that the Saint Lukes’ Church Spring Plant Sale was ongoing until 
Saturday, May 14th from 10:00 AM to 6:00 PM. 
 
Councilman Cirieco said that Somers Relay for Life was going to be Friday, June 12th at 
Somers Middle School from 7:00 PM to 7:00 AM.  He said that there were 27 Teams and 
153 participants.  He said that everyone was invited and they hoped everyone would 
come out to support the event. 
 
Councilman Clinchy said that the Town of Somers Memorial Day Parade was Monday, 
May 23rd, lineup was at 9:30 AM at the Somers Middle School and the Parade would 
begin at 10:00 AM.  He said that there would be a ceremony at the end of the Parade at 
Ivandell Cemetery with refreshments afterwards at the Town House. 
 

Authorize sale of 
Town Owned property 

Authorize waiving the 
30 day waiting period 
for the issuance of a 
new liquor license 

Authorize additional 
compensation pay to 
P. Nicolosi for extra 
work performed 

Declare May as 
Preservation Month 
2016 

Execute an agreement 
with The Leahy 
Company 

Execute the 2016 
IIIC-1 and IIIC-2 
Agreements  

Execute the 2016 
IIIB Federal Service 
Agreement 

Adopt the Annual 
MS4 Report 



MAY 12, 2016 – REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

Councilman Faulkner said that the Harlem Wizards versus the Somers Facility Basketball 
Game was May 20th at Somers High School.  He urged everyone to get their tickets early, 
the event always sold out and it benefited the Somers Education Foundation. 
 
Councilman Faulkner said that on Thursday, June 9th the Somers Education Foundation 
was hosting their Annual Golf Outing at Angle Brook Golf Course.  He said that the 
event was close to selling out and urged all who wanted to participate to sign up before it 
was too late. 
 
The Supervisor said that the American Heritage Living History Day was being held on 
May 26th at 8:00 AM at Somers Middle School.  He said that this was one of his favorite 
events. 
 
Claims for the payment of all Town Bills in the amount of $440,501.47 were presented 
and allowed for payment as shown on the Abstract of Audited Claims on file in the office 
of the Town Clerk. 
 
Thereupon motion of Supervisor Morrissey, seconded by Councilman Faulkner, the 
meeting was adjourned at 8:35 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
  Town Clerk    


